

# BYLAWS OF THE KOLB ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PARENT FACULTY CLUB

# a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

Effective June 3<sup>rd</sup>, 2016

#### **ARTICLE I. NAME**

## Section 1.01 Name

The name of this corporation is the Kolb Elementary School Parent Faculty Club (the "Corporation").

#### ARTCILE II. PURPOSE

# Section 2.01 Purpose

The purpose of the Corporation is:

- i. To assist Kolb Elementary School (the "School") in providing quality education for all Kolb Elementary School students;
- ii. To sponsor activities which raise funds through parental involvement to assist in supporting the educational program and extracurricular activities at the School;
- iii. To act as liaison between parents, faculty, community and the Board of Education, and;
- iv. To promote the welfare of students in home, school and community.

## ARTICLE III. MEMBERSHIP

# Section 3.01 Members

Parents or guardians of students attending Kolb Elementary School become "Members" of the Corporation. Faculty of the School may also become "Members" of the Corporation. The Corporation admits Members of any race, color, religion, national or ethnic origin, and sexual orientation to all the rights, privileges, programs and activities generally accorded or made available to Members.

#### **Section 3.02 Voting Rights**

Each Member will be entitled to one (1) vote on any matter submitted to the Board with a request for a vote. Members will be entitled to vote for Officers and Directors of the Corporation as set forth in Section 7.02 (Election) and those amendments to the Bylaws of the Corporation that relate directly to members rights as set forth in Section 11.01 (Amendment).

#### ARTICLE IV. OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

#### **Section 4.01 Composition**

Directors of the Board for the Corporation (the "**Directors**") are made up of the President, a Vice President, a Co-Vice President (where one is elected), a Secretary, two Co-Treasurers, Director of Volunteers and Room Parents, Director of Communications and Technology, Director of Spirit Wear and

the Principal of the School. They shall be collectively be called "Directors" and individually as a "Director".

# (a) Officers

The President, Vice President, Secretary, and Co-Treasurers shall be referred to as "Officers"

#### (b) Directors

The Members will elect the Directors as set forth in Section 7.02 (Election). Except the Principal of the School, who is appointed by the school District.

# **Section 4.02 Terms of Office**

Each Director (including Officers) shall hold office until he or she resigns, or is removed, fulfills their term (term as defined in section 5.01 (c)), or is otherwise disqualified to serve or until his or her successor shall be elected and qualified, whichever occurs first.

## **Section 4.03 Duties**

## (a) President

The President shall:

- i. Be the chief executive officer and general manager of the Corporation and will generally supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Corporation, subject to the direction of the Board:
- ii. Perform all the duties incident to this office and such other duties as may be required by law, or as the Board or these Bylaws may require;
- iii. Preside at all meetings of the Directors and make regular reports to the membership at large;
- iv. Represent the School at district meetings, which include, but not limited to Superintendent's Council Meeting
- v. Collaborate & communicate with the Principal to stay regularly apprised of School and district activities:
- vi. Oversee all committees and the board's roles, responsibilities, and duties;
- vii. Be responsible for filing and maintaining (with or without an independent third party) all Corporate documentations and filings, such as but not limited to Statement of Information (Secretary of State), Articles of Incorporation, Corporate By Laws, Business License documentation and Corporate Tax Filings;
- viii. See that Directors handling PFC monetary transactions be fingerprinted, which will be paid for by the Corporation.

#### (b) Vice President

The Vice President shall in accordance with the Co-Vice President (where one is elected):

- i. In the absence or disability of the President, or in the event of the President's refusal to act, perform all of the duties of the President, and when so acting, will have the powers of, and be subject to the restrictions on the President;
- ii. Oversee all fundraising activities which may include Eagle Fun Run, Spring Fundraiser, Box Tops, eScrip, Amazonsmile, Labels for Education, Fall Check-in/Registration, Dine outs and food sales:
- iii. Monitor and report on fundraising participation levels and provide input for yearly fundraising plan for the PFC;

- iv. Prior to the start of an event, identify a chairperson the event and for each subcommittee; if an event chairperson cannot be identified that event will be cancelled;
- v. Assist the President as needed:
- vi. Act as liaison for programs and oversee all school programs and activities as deemed necessary between the school and PFC;
- vii. Work with local business regards to sponsorships for PFC funded events throughout the year;
- viii. Be fingerprinted, which will be paid for by the Corporation, prior to handling any funds incoming or outgoing

## (c) Secretary

The Secretary shall:

- i. Certify and maintain an original or copy of these Bylaws as amended, and if a PFC website is available, see that the notes of open and general Meetings are posted to the site for its members in a timely manner;
- ii. Keep or cause to be kept a book of minutes of all meetings of the members and Board, recording the time and place of holding, whether regular or special, and if special, how authorized, the notice given, the names of those present, and the proceedings thereof;
- iii. See that all notices are duly given in accordance with the Bylaws and distribute minutes of meetings to the Board two weeks prior to the next meeting and post the approved (working meeting approvals can be done by email approval since these would not be view by or voted on by the Members) minutes online via the kolbpfc.org website;
- iv. Be custodian of the official legal and corporate records of the Corporation including filing the correct corporate documents;
- v. Be responsible for all legal and regulatory correspondence at the direction of the President;
- vi. Assist the President in filing and maintaining (with or without an independent third party) all Corporate documentations and filings, such as but not limited to Statement of Information (Secretary of State), Articles of Incorporation, Corporate By Laws, Business License documentation and Corporate Tax Filings;
- vii. Be a liaison between 3rd Party entities such as but not limited to Corporation Attorney, and Agent for Service of Process;
- viii. Be responsible for Corporate legal affairs and be the designated contact person for Corporate counsel, at the direction of the President;
- ix. In the absence of both the President and the Vice-President from a meeting, call the meeting to order and appoint a temporary chairperson;
- x. Be responsible for all correspondence at the direction of the President;

## (d) Co-Treasurers

The Co- Treasurers shall lead in coordination with each other.

- i. Have custody and to be responsible for all funds and investments of the Corporation, and deposit all such funds in the name of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as may be directed by the Board in timely manner and provide receipts on request;
- ii. Receive, safely keep and ensure money handling procedures are followed for money due and payable to the Corporation;
- iii. Disburse or cause to be disbursed the funds of the Corporation as may be directed by the Board, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements in a timely manner;

- iv. Keep and maintain adequate and correct books and records of the Corporation's properties and business transactions, including the Corporation's accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gain and losses;
- v. Present financial status reports at regular meetings of the Board, or as otherwise determined by the Board;
- vi. Have responsibility for preparing and monitoring the budget of the Corporation;
- vii. Follow the Corporation's Internal Controls and Cash Policies;
- viii. Keep and reconcile the Corporation's checkbooks and bank accounts;
- ix. Submit all requested/required financial data to the Finance Audit Committee
- x. Prepare or cause to be prepared all statements, forms, or returns as may be required by Federal, State, or local taxing authorities corporation;
- xi. Work with the Co-Treasurers elected to ensure a smooth transition of responsibilities for the following school year;
- xii. Follow the cash handling procedure as documented by the Board;
- xiii. Prepare a report from the accounting software for each monthly PFC Board Meeting listing all checks issued and deposits made;
- xiv. Approve company matches online which have been reconciled to match parent donations;
- xv. Keep and maintain adequate and correct records of faculty stipends to avoid any overage;
- xvi. All money must be counted and recorded on school premises and then deposited at a financial institution in a timely manner;
- xvii. Post budget monthly on the PFC website in a timely manner;
- xviii. Be fingerprinted, which will be paid for by the Corporation, prior to handling any funds incoming or outgoing;

## (e) Director of Volunteers & Room Parents.

The Director of Volunteers & Room Parents shall:

- i. Keep a list of all volunteers and the subcommittee volunteer signup sheets;
- ii. Keep a list of room parents by contacting teachers to get the name of their room parent (not all classrooms will necessarily have a room parent.);
- iii. Act as a liaison between the Board and volunteers;
- iv. Contact volunteers and establish new subcommittees at the direction of the board;
- v. Put together subcommittee signups for the following school year;
- vi. Prepare and send all parent community calendar updates, event reminders, call for volunteer emails through whichever service designated by the Board;
- vii. Assign a coordinator for room parents or assume the tasks:
  - Keep a list of room parents by contacting teachers to get the name of their room parent (not all classrooms will necessarily have a room parent);
  - Hold a kickoff meeting with room parents providing general responsibilities and guidelines at the start of the school year;
  - Be the liaison between the Board, room parents and teachers by providing regular monthly updates.

#### (f) Director of Communications & Technology

The Director of Communications & Technology shall:

i. Represent the face of the PFC via all electronic measures including, but not limited to, the kolbpfc.org website, PFC Face book page;

- ii. Be responsible for up to date correspondence and newsletters of the organization and keep on file copies of all correspondence sent and received;
- iii. Maintain accurate records of all communication to and from the organization to and from its members and external entities;
- iv. Be responsible for announcing and posting special events, fundraisers, and general PFC announcements through means such as but not limited to monthly newsletters, email campaigns, flyers, PFC website and PFC Face book page;
- v. Create necessary copies and distribute all required PFC documents and announcements;
- vi. Maintain and update the PFC website and Face book page, posting all flyers, meeting minutes and other PFC correspondence;
- vii. Make an effort to coordinate all communication between the PFC and school to maximize communication to all its Members.
- viii. Post budget monthly on the PFC website in a timely manner;

# (g) Director of Spirit Wear

The Director of Spirit Wear shall:

- i. Be responsible in working with the PFC to develop a spirit wear budget;
- ii. Maintain accurate inventory;
- iii. Distribute and market Kolb spirit wear online and at various events throughout the school year;
- iv. Chair Spirit Fridays (last Friday of the month)
- v. Be fingerprinted, which will be paid for by the Corporation, prior to handling any funds incoming or outgoing;

## (h) Principal

The Principal shall:

- i. Attend meetings of the Board (working and general meetings) and make regular reports, as needed;
- ii. Act as the liaison between the School, the faculty of the School and the Dublin Unified School District;
- iii. Report on Dublin Unified School District activities and information in addition to the needs of the School;
- iv. Collaborate and communicate with the President regularly;
- v. Have the ability to designate an alternative school official to serve in this role in his/her place.
- vi. May appoint a teacher liaison

## **Section 4.04 Vacancies**

A vacancy of an Office shall be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion of the term in accordance with Section 5.02 (Powers and Duties).

#### ARTICLE V. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

#### **Section 5.01 Number and Term**

#### (a) Number

The Board will be composed of up to ten individuals: a President, a Vice President, a co-vice President (where one is elected), a Secretary, Co-Treasurers, Director of Volunteers and Room Parents, Director of

Communications and Technology, Director of Spirit Wear and the Principal of the School. They shall be collectively be called "Directors" and individually as a Director".

## (b) Vote

Each Director will have one vote.

## (c) Term

Each Director will serve a term of up to one (1) school calendar year. A Director may serve more than one (1) consecutive term. A Director's regular term will begin on and include the last regular meeting of the Board for the school year prior to the following school year with respect to which the Director has been elected and will end on and include the last regular meeting of the Board for the school year with respect to which the Director has been elected. With the exception of Co-Treasurers which shall have a two year term.

## (d) **Qualifications**

All Directors (which includes Officers) must (1) be Members (as defined in section 3.01), (2) have the skills necessary and desirable qualifications individually to fulfill the duties of the position in which they serve and (3) have the ability to work cooperatively with the Board and membership to fulfill these duties of the position in which they serve and further the purposes of the Corporation, (4) be able to attend seven or more monthly meetings and working sessions to maintain your position.

#### (f) Removal for Cause

Any Director (which includes Officers) may be removed with cause upon the vote of a majority of the Directors voting on such matter.

## **Section 5.02 Powers and Duties**

## (a) Management of Corporation

The affairs of the Corporation will be managed by the Board and all powers of the Corporation will be exercised by or under the direction of the Board. In furtherance, and not in limitation, of the foregoing, the Board will have general charge and control of the affairs, funds and property of the Corporation. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board may establish and delegate performance of duties and exercise of powers, to Officers, Directors, and agents of the Corporation from time to time.

#### (b) Vacancies.

Vacancies or absences of qualified candidates of the Board of Directors may be filled by board nomination followed by majority vote for the candidate; persons so appointed will serve until the expiration of the regular term.

## **Section 5.03 Board Members Meetings**

## (a) Regular Meetings

Regular Board meetings will be scheduled and held on the second Thursday of each month during the school year unless otherwise designated by the Officers.

## (b) Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called by any Officer and shall be called upon the written or e-mailed request of any three (3) Directors.

#### **Section 5.04 Quorum**

Quorum shall consist of one-half (1/2) of the authorized Directors plus one (1) or 51% so long as at least one Officer is present will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision made or done by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board unless the law or these Bylaws require a greater number.

## **Section 5.05 Notice**

Regular meetings of the Board may be held without notice if the time and place of such meetings are fixed by these Bylaws or by resolution of the Board. Notice of any other meeting of the Board must be given to each Director forty-eight (48) hours in advance, if delivered personally or by telephone (including a voice messaging system or other system or technology designed to record or communicate messages), electronic mail other electronic means. Any Director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a Director at any meeting will constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. The business to be transacted at the meeting will be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of special meetings.

## **Section 5.06 Action by Board Without Meeting**

Any action permitted to be taken by the Board may be taken without a meeting if a majority of the Directors individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Writing can be either via handwritten note, or electronic means provided to the Secretary to conduct business during his/her term.

## **Section 5.07 Statements of Policy**

The Board may adopt, modify or rescind written Statements of Policy from time to time interpreting or elaborating on the principles set forth in these Bylaws or setting forth the then current policies of the Board with respect to the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation (as in effect from time to time, the "Statements of Policy"). Statements of Policy will be maintained with these Bylaws with the other records of the Board. Any Statement of Policy approved by the Board will be binding upon the Corporation, its Directors and Members to the same extent as if incorporated in these Bylaws.

#### ARTICLE VI. GENERAL MEETINGS

## **Section 6.01 General Meetings**

The Members will elect Officers and Directors by written ballot, or online as set forth in Section 7.02 (Election) and as contemplated by Section 5513 of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law (the "Act"). Accordingly, no regular meeting of the Members is contemplated. Special meetings may be held at the call of the President. Special meetings must be called when requested by a majority of the Board, or by a written petition signed by twenty-five (25) Members.

## Section 6.02 Quorum

A number of at least 6 Members of the organization, including the Directors will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Members. The Members present at a duly called or duly held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough members to leave less than a quorum, if any action taken

(other than adjournment) is approved by at least a majority of the members required to constitute a quorum.

# **Section 6.03 Notice of Meetings of Members**

# (a) General Notice Contents

All notices of meetings of Members must be posted 48 hours before the date of the meeting. The notice must specify the place, date, and hour of the meeting and the general nature of the business to be transacted, and no other business may in that case be transacted.

## (b) Notice of Certain Agenda Items

If action is proposed to be taken at any meeting for approval of any of the following proposals, the notice must also state the general nature of the proposal. Member action on such items is invalid unless the notice or written waiver of notice states the general nature of the proposal(s):

- i. Removing a Director (including an Officer) without cause;
- ii. Filling vacancies on the Board by the Members;
- iii. Amending the Articles of Incorporation; and
- iv. Voluntarily dissolving the Corporation.

# (c) Manner of Giving Notice

Notice of any meeting of the members must be given either (1) by posting on the school marquee, (2) by posting on the school website Home Page, (3) by posting on the PFC website, (4) by posting on the PFC Face book page, (5) by email, (6) or by sending home the notice of the meeting with the student. A minimum of three notice options should be used to give notice of the meetings.

## **Section 6.04 Majority Vote**

All decisions of Members must be by majority vote of those Members, as the case may be, present and voting at the meeting or submitting completed written ballots or by email, except as otherwise required by law or these Bylaws.

#### ARTICLE VII. ELECTION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

## **Section 7.01 Nomination**

#### (a) Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee of at least four (4) Members will be appointed by the President with the approval of the Board by February 1st. The Nomination Committee will consist of at least two (2) current Directors. The Principal of the School may be asked to provide input to the Nomination Committee.

#### (b) Nominations

The Nomination Committee shall organize and maintain the submissions by Members for the Officers and other Directors and submit those nominations in March or before the end of the school calendar date as suggested;

- i. Nominations may be submitted to the Nominating Committee by any member in writing, and if qualified to serve, shall be submitted to the Board by the Nominating Committee for approval in accordance with Section 7.02 (Election);
- ii. The Nominating Committee shall not be precluded from nominating a current Director to succeed him or herself, if eligible to serve;

- iii. Nominations shall be made in writing so long as the nominee's name and contact number is provided. Any individual nominating themselves must submit a statement of ballot if requested by the nomination committee;
- iv. The committee has the option to hold a nomination meeting for nominees to be proposed by the Membership

## (c) Submission to Members

The nominations for Directors will be submitted to the Members for approval in accordance with Section 7.02 (Election);

# **Section 7.02 Election**

#### (a) Ballots

The Election Committee shall prepare a ballot with its recommended list of Directors (including the Officers) and all nominees who have agreed to serve if elected, to the Board at the Board's March meeting. The Board will approve and submit this ballot (with any changes reasonably required by the Board). The Directors including the Officers will be elected by this ballot, which shall be submitted to the Members. Ballots may also be received by email or online election processes if setup by the board.

#### (b) No Contest

A Board position for which one candidate exist shall not require a ballot for that position and the current Board of Directors may vote on the candidate at the Board's April meeting. In such situation a notice will be sent out to the members.

# (c) Tabulation

The Election Committee shall send out ballots after March PFC Meeting but no later than March 31st and make them public via website and hard copy, count the returned ballots and present the results of the election in a timely manner but no later than the Board's April meeting.

#### (d) First Meeting of New Board

The newly elected Board will convene its first meeting, jointly, with the last meeting of the outgoing Board for purposes of instruction and direction. The new board members must review the Bylaws of the PFC by the May meeting and must be in attendance of the first meeting before the start of the school year for which their term represents. At this first meeting of the school year, any member of the previous board (Directors or Officers) shall be present to advise or consult if approved by the new PFC Board.

#### ARTICLE VIII. COMMITTEES

#### **Section 8.01 Committees**

The Board may appoint such committees from time to time as it deems advisable, and for such purposes or activities as it deems advisable. Members of such committees shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. The Board may adopt standing committees from time to time. The identities of the standing committees and their functions will be set forth in Statements of Policy, as adopted or amended from time to time.

#### ARTICLE IX. FUNDS MANAGEMENT

## Section 9.01 Budget

- (a) The Board of Directors shall develop a budget for each school year, which shall include the planned income and expenditures. The budget shall also provide for a sufficient carryover of funds to enable the organization to function at the start of the new school year. A net cash carryover as of June 30th, would be no less than \$15,000.00 (Net cash is defined as cash less any unpaid items).
- (b) The budget shall be presented to the PFC membership for approval at the first General Meeting of the beginning of the school year.
- (c) Unbudgeted financial items or budgeted overruns will be reviewed by the Board of Directors.
- (d) The budget may be amended by a vote of the membership at any regularly scheduled General Meeting, or at any Special Meeting called for that purpose.
- (e) Discrepancies of amounts under \$50.00 can be amended at the discretion of the Treasury Lead or co-Treasurer without a Special Meeting or vote of the Directors or Members
- (f) Discretionary funds under \$200.00 will be voted on by the Directors without a Special Meeting and do not require a vote by the Members.

## **Section 9.02 Funds**

Funds allocated for specific expenditures must be used by the end of each school year or be returned to the Corporation general fund.

## **Section 9.03 Audits**

A volunteer Finance Internal Audit Committee will provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility relating to the organization's financial operations. Internal auditing shall take place at least at once during the school year (schedule to be determined by the Audit Committee). The audit committee must be given access to the Board's financial records, and any member of the Board must be available to respond to questions or provide materials necessary to facilitate the audits. The Audit Committee must be made up of members who were external to the PFC Board in the year the audit is for and at no time should any member of the committee be recommended by the co-treasurers. If an audit committee is unable to be formed, if needed the Board may hire an outside auditor to review the financials. External audits may occur upon the request of the school district.

#### ARTICLE X. LIABILITY

#### **Section 10.01 Liability**

No Director (including its Officers) of this Corporation will be personally liable for the debts, liabilities or obligations of the Corporation.

## **Section 10.02 Exculpation**

No member, Officer, Director or agent of the Corporation (collectively, the "Covered Persons") will be liable to the Corporation or any other Person who has an interest in or claim against the Corporation for any loss, damage or claim incurred by reason of any act or omission performed or omitted by such Covered Person in good faith on behalf of the Corporation and in a manner reasonably believed to be within the scope of the authority conferred on such Covered Person by these Bylaws, the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, or applicable law.

#### 10.03 Indemnification

To the fullest extent permitted by law, this Corporation shall indemnify its Directors, Officers and other persons described in California Corporations Code Section 5238(a), including persons formerly

occupying any such positions, against all expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any "proceeding," as that term is used in that section, and including an action by or in the right of the Corporation, by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that section. "Expenses," as used in this bylaw, shall have the same meaning as in that section of the California Corporations Code.

On written request to the Board by any person seeking indemnification under California Corporations Code Section 5238(b) or Section 5238(c), the Board shall promptly decide under California Corporations Code Section 5238(e) whether the applicable standard of conduct set forth in California Corporations Code Section 5238(b) or Section 5238(c) has been met and, if so, the Board shall authorize indemnification. If the Board cannot authorize indemnification, because the number of Directors who are parties to the proceeding with respect to which indemnification is sought prevents the formation of a quorum of Directors who are not parties to that proceeding, the Board shall promptly call a meeting of the Members. At that meeting, the Members shall determine under California Corporations Code Section 5238(e) whether the applicable standard of conduct has been met and, if so, the Members present at the meeting in person or by proxy shall authorize indemnification.

To the fullest extent permitted by law and except as otherwise determined by the Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking indemnification under these Bylaws in defending any proceeding covered by this Section shall be advanced by the Corporation before final disposition of the proceeding, on receipt by the Corporation of an undertaking by or on behalf of that person that the advance will be repaid unless it is ultimately found that the person is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation for those expenses.

## 10.04 Insurance

This Corporation is required to purchase and maintain insurance to the full extent permitted by law on behalf of its Officers, Directors, and other agents, to cover any liability asserted against or incurred by any Officer, Director, or agent in such capacity or arising from the Officer's, Director's, or agent's status as such. This insurance must also cover school functions or events that aren't covered by the School's insurance.

#### ARTICLE XI. AMENDMENTS AND RULES OF ORDER

#### 11.01 Amendment

The Bylaws may be amended in the following manner:

- i. Any amendment must be proposed by the Board or by written request of not less than ten (10) Members, addressed to the President.
- ii. Any amendment may be approved solely by the two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Directors, unless the proposed amendment changes the number of authorized Directors, Member voting rights, or any sections directly related to members' right. For these matters, the amendment shall need have both the two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Directors and an approval of the Members as defined in 11.01(iii).
- iii. If a proposed amendment requires Member approval, a statement of the nature and purpose n of the proposed amendment must be read at one (1) meeting of the Board open to the Members preceding the meeting of adoption, or the proposed amendment must be submitted to the Members. A majority vote of all Members present will be required to confirm each such amendment or to confirm the revised Bylaws as a whole.
- iv. Statements of Policy may be amended by the Board (refer to section 5.07).

- v. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the Bylaws may be amended as necessary to obtain a determination by the Internal Revenue Service that the Corporation is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code or by the Franchise Tax Board that it is exempt from California Franchise or income tax under Section 23701 of the Revenue and Taxation Code of California by unanimous written consent of those Directors present at any meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present.
- vi. Bylaws may also be amended should it be necessary due to changes in California Law.

# 11.02 Rules of Order

The rules contained in Roberts Rules of Order Revised will govern the Corporation in all matters of parliamentary procedure to which they are applicable and not inconsistent with the Bylaws.